
 1 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY FACILITIES COMMITTEE 
NEW COURTHOUSE, 117 DICK STREET, 5TH FLOOR, ROOM 564 

AUGUST 1, 2013 - 8:30 A.M. 
MINUTES 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioner Billy King, Chair  
    Commissioner Ed Melvin 
    Commissioner Charles Evans 
 
OTHER COMMISSIONERS 
PRESENT:   Commissioner Jimmy Keefe  
    Commissioner Kenneth Edge 
              
OTHERS PRESENT:   James Martin, County Manager 
    James Lawson, Assistant County Manager 

Sally Shutt, Chief Public Information Officer  
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney 
Howard Abner, Assistant Finance Director 
Judge Elizabeth Keever, Chief District Court Judge 

    Linda Priest, Clerk of Court 
    Cindy Blackwell, Clerk of Court’s Office 
    Jeffery Brown, Engineering and Infrastructure Director  
    Sam Lucas, Engineering and Infrastructure 
    Wayne Dudley, Engineering and Infrastructure 
    Jody Risacher, Library Director  
    Lee Warren, Register of Deeds  
    Lisa Scales, Register of Deeds 
    Kelly Autry, Accountant 
    Austin Keating, Child Support Director  
    Sarah Hallock, Communicare  
    Kim Smith, Johnson Controls  
    Chuck James, Johnson Controls 
    Michael Gibson, Parks and Recreation Director  
    Candice White, Clerk to the Board 
                        Kellie Beam, Deputy Clerk to the Board 
    Press 
       
Commissioner Billy King called the meeting to order.  Commissioner King stated the 
items of the agenda would need to be reordered due to visitors in attendance.     
 
 
1.        APPROVAL OF MINUTES – APRIL 4, 2013 MEETING 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Melvin moved to approve the minutes.    
SECOND: Commissioner Evans 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS (3-0) 



 2 

 
 
2. UPDATE REGARDING COURTHOUSE IMPROVEMENTS AND PROPOSED 

RENOVATIONS TO BRADFORD PLACE AND HISTORIC COURTHOUSE 
 
James Lawson, Assistant County Manager, stated he would like to update the Facilities 
Committee on a number of completed projects, current projects and projected projects.  
 
Mr. Lawson stated Linda Priest, Clerk of Court, has concerns about the security in the 
SafeLink office.  Mr. Lawson stated SafeLink employees feel unsafe because there is no 
safe way for them to exit should the need arise when they are dealing with domestic 
issues that are becoming increasingly violent.  Mr. Lawson stated the Engineering and 
Infrastructure Department completed an assessment of the SafeLink office and 
determined there would need to be a small expansion of the SafeLink office which would 
take a small amount of space from the Court Law Library.  Mr. Lawson stated a layout 
has been determined to expand the SafeLink office without diminishing services of the 
Court Law Library.  Mr. Lawson stated the renovation of the SafeLink office would 
entail removing some old materials from the Court Law Library but the information will 
still be available at the computer terminals.  Mr. Lawson stated information about the 
proposed renovation of the Court Law Library was distributed to the members of the Bar 
Association with minimal feedback.  Mr. Lawson stated Attorney Neil Yarborough had 
general concerns about removing materials from the library and suggested a public 
hearing on the proposed renovation of the Court Law Library.  Mr. Lawson stated 
management’s proposal is for the Facilities Committee to move forward with the 
proposed renovation of the SafeLink office and Court Law Library.   
 
Commissioner King asked how much space the Court Law Library would lose.  Wayne 
Dudley, Engineering and Infrastructure, stated approximately three hundred (300) square 
feet.  Jeffery Brown, Engineering and Infrastructure Director, stated everything from a 
working standpoint would stay intact.   
 
MOTION: Commissioner King moved to recommend to the full board approval of 

moving forward with the proposed renovations of the SafeLink office and 
Court Law Library.   

SECOND: Commissioner Melvin 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS (3-0) 
 
Mr. Lawson stated the mental health functions that are currently taking place at 109 
Bradford Avenue by Cape Fear Valley Health System will be relocating to Roxie Avenue 
later this year.  Mr. Lawson stated this move will leave Cumberland County Child 
Support as the only occupant of 109 Bradford Avenue.  Mr. Lawson stated Child Support 
is currently located on the 4th floor and part of the 3rd floor and is in desperate need of 
additional space.  Mr. Lawson stated the proposed plan is for the Child Support 
Department to occupy the entire 3rd floor and the 5th floor in addition to their current 
space.  Mr. Lawson stated the 5th floor is a partial floor and this area will be utilized for 
Child Support’s call center and administrative offices.   



 3 

 
Mr. Lawson stated as a result of the mental health merger, management has asked 
Communicare to take on additional responsibilities related to court-ordered parenting 
assessments and psychological evaluations.  Mr. Lawson stated for many years this 
function was maintained in the Mental Health Clinic with one psychologist position 
specifically budgeted for that purpose.  Mr. Lawson stated other clinicians in the clinic 
assisted with the work load when the demand exceeded the capacity of the psychologist.  
Mr. Lawson stated based upon the sensitive nature of the court-ordered responsibility and 
the link to the judicial system, this responsibility was deemed not suitable to be 
transferred to Cape Fear Valley Health System.  
 
Mr. Lawson stated Communicare has the administrative structure in place to provide the 
court-ordered care because Communicare has seven (7) clinicians which can provide 
assistance with the parenting assessments.  Mr. Lawson stated Communicare will provide 
administrative support, coordination, oversight and tracking of these court-ordered 
functions.  Mr. Lawson stated therefore, the county needs to maintain management 
oversight of the court-ordered care and facilitate coordination between the county’s 
psychologist and the courts by co-locating the psychologist with Communicare.  Mr. 
Lawson stated approximately eighteen (18) months ago, Communicare was relocated to 
226 Bradford Avenue from the Winding Creek Annex building due to the extensive time 
required to replace the HVAC and mechanical systems.  Mr. Lawson stated 
Communicare does not have the space to add the court-ordered function in their current 
facility so the proposed plan is to relocate Communicare to a portion of the 1st and 2nd 
floor of the 109 Bradford Avenue facility.  Mr. Lawson stated the common area on the 1st 
floor to include the auditorium, classroom, kitchen/break room, and reception area will be 
shared between Communicare and Child Support.   
 
Mr. Lawson stated the renovations that have been identified are; carpet and paint on the 
entire 2nd, 3rd, and 5th floors, carpet in the offices and the auditorium on the first floor, 
paint on the entire 1st floor, rekeying of the locks for the entire building, security door on 
the third floor, a minor wall built to divide a room, and some ceiling tile replacements.  
Mr. Brown stated the renovations would be more of a cosmetic issue rather than a 
structure issue.    
 
MOTION: Commissioner Melvin moved to recommend to the full board 

approval of moving forward with the proposed renovations to the 
Bradford Avenue facility.   

SECOND:  Commissioner King 
DISCUSSION:   Commissioner Evans stated he thinks the county needs to look at 

every option before making quick decisions when re-locating 
departments.  Commissioner Evans stated he would like to see 
staff come back with information about all of the county properties 
that are available.  Commissioner Melvin stated he feels staff 
members have taken the time to research all properties and have 
brought back the best option.  Commissioner Edge stated he feels 



 4 

staff has done due diligence but he would like another Capital 
Improvement Plan developed.    

VOTE: PASSED (2-1) (Commissioners Melvin and King voted in favor; 
Commissioner Evans voted in opposition) 

  
Mr. Brown stated the Register of Deeds office would like to create a conference room by 
consolidating space within the vault.  Mr. Brown stated the renovation would provide a 
better flow for staff and citizens to access data.   
 
Lee Warren, Register of Deeds, stated since he has been the President of the North 
Carolina Association of Register of Deeds he has been traveling the state visiting other 
offices and would like to try to recreate the Register of Deeds office to better utilize the 
existing space.   
 
MOTION: Commissioner Melvin moved to recommend to the full board approval of 

moving forward with the proposed renovations to the Register of Deeds 
office.   

SECOND: Commissioner Evans 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS (3-0)  
 
Mr. Brown stated with the addition of an Administrative Coordinator I position to the 
Engineering and Infrastructure Department, the current office configuration needs to be 
reconfigured.  Mr. Brown stated the goal is to trade a small amount of occupied space 
with the Community Transportation Program, which in turn would allow the Engineering 
and Infrastructure Department staff to be relocated within one suite instead of three 
separate locations.  Mr. Brown stated this renovation would improve customer service 
and provide greater efficiency to the Engineering and Infrastructure Department.  Mr. 
Brown stated the renovation would consist of some minor wall reconfigurations, lowering 
the ceiling, carpet, phones and paint.    
 
MOTION: Commissioner Melvin moved to recommend to the full board approval of 

moving forward with proposed renovations to the Engineering and 
Infrastructure Department.     

SECOND: Commissioner King 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS (3-0) 
 
Mr. Brown stated the Detention Center Expansion Project is still within budget and on 
schedule.  Mr. Brown stated the projected final completion date is November 27, 2013.  
Mr. Brown stated once the Detention Center Expansion Project is close to being 
completed, a tour would be scheduled.   
 
Mr. Brown stated the Law Enforcement Center is in need of HVAC upgrades.  Mr. 
Brown stated the HVAC upgrades would include replacing the emergency chiller to 
provide much needed additional cooling to the 911 server room and the Sheriff’s Office 
server room.  Mr. Brown stated bids are coming in and this item will be on the August 5, 
2013, Board of Commissioners agenda for consideration. 



 5 

Mr. Martin stated the county is responsible for housing probation and parole officers.  
Mr. Martin stated four additional positions have been added to the Probation and Parole 
Department and he expects more growth to follow.  Mr. Martin stated he wanted to 
inform the Facilities Committee that a request for additional office space may be 
requested in the near future.     
 
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF PARK LAND PURCHASE FOR LINDEN PARK 
 
Michael Gibson, Director of Fayetteville-Cumberland Parks and Recreation, stated staff 
has been searching for suitable property in north Cumberland County for the 
development of a community park to be constructed in or near the Town of Linden.  Mr. 
Gibson stated property has recently become available and the Fayetteville-Cumberland 
Parks and Recreation Department would like to request approval from the Cumberland 
County Board of Commissioners to move forward with the purchase.   
 
Mr. Gibson stated the 30-35 acre tract is located on Colliers Chapel Road and 
approximately 5-6 acres are inside the Linden town limits.  Mr. Gibson stated an 
appraisal has been completed and an environmental assessment is scheduled.  Mr. Gibson 
explained the development of Phase 1 would take roughly 6-8 months and the majority of 
the work would be completed by Parks and Recreation Department staff.  Mr. Gibson 
stated the park will be developed in phases as funds become available, very similar to 
Godwin Park.  Mr. Gibson stated the first phase of about six (6) acres will consist of: 
 

• Picnic shelter with tables and a grill 
• A paved walking trail 
• Children’s playground unit 
• Volleyball court 
• Open play area 
• Lighting, benches, water fountains 
• Landscaping 

 
Mr. Gibson stated funding for the land purchase and park construction is requested from 
Cumberland County’s special recreation tax.   
 
MOTION: Commissioner Evans moved to recommend to the full board approval of 

accepting the park land purchase for Linden Park and moving forward 
with the proposed park project.     

SECOND: Commissioner Melvin 
VOTE:  UNANIMOUS (3-0) 
 
 
4. REPORT ON JCI GUARANTEED ENERGY SAVINGS PROJECT 
 
Chuck James, Johnson Controls, Inc. (JCI) reported the annual avoidance for the seventh 
year performance was $767,673.  Mr. James compared energy and dollar savings for 



 6 

years six and seven, and stated the total project target or guarantee over twelve years 
remains at $6.2 million.   
 
Mr. James reported electrical and gas energy avoidance savings for year seven equated to 
7,741 tons of greenhouse emissions and noted the county’s energy efficiency efforts 
resulted in a reduction of pollutants such as mercury, sulfur dioxide, and nitrogen oxides.  
Mr. James further reported that to date, JCI has reduced Cumberland County’s emissions 
by 45,471 tons.  Mr. James stated by reducing emissions, the environment in Cumberland 
County has become a cleaner, more comfortable place.   
 
Mr. James stated during year eight JCI will continue to verify the building automated 
system is working correctly to increase the integrity and reliability of system performance 
and energy savings.  Mr. James stated JCI will also continue to conduct a proactive 
design review and analysis of upcoming projects based upon operation and energy 
management savings.   
 
 
5. OTHER MATTERS OF BUSINESS 
 
There were no other matters of business.   
 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:03 AM. 


	CUMBERLAND COUNTY FACILITIES COMMITTEE
	NEW COURTHOUSE, 117 DICK STREET, 5TH FLOOR, ROOM 564
	AUGUST 1, 2013 - 8:30 A.M.
	MINUTES
	MEMBERS PRESENT: Commissioner Billy King, Chair
	Commissioner Billy King called the meeting to order.  Commissioner King stated the items of the agenda would need to be reordered due to visitors in attendance.
	MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:03 AM.

